
 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

                          
Called by:  Keith McDonald, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2022      
Members:  John Butitta, Paul Arena, TIME: 5:30 PM 
Joe Hoffman, Jaime Salgado, Valerie 
Hanserd, Michael Thompson 
 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 
               

AGENDA:  
 

A. Call to Order  
 

B. Roll Call 
 

C. Approval of September 1, 2022 Minutes             
 
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 

Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to 
three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We 
will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  
Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning 
Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may 
not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per 
calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic 
in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the 
chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.  
 

E. Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services 
 

F. Resolution Approving Emergency Agreement With Terracon 
 

G. Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances Regarding 
Registration Fees for Dogs and Cats 
 

H. Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4 of the Winnebago County Code Relating 
to the Rules of Procedure of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

I. Future Agenda Items 
 

J. Adjournment 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Operations and Administrative Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Thursday, September 1, 2022 
5:30 PM 

 
   

Present: Others Present: 
Keith McDonald, Chairperson 
John Butitta 
Jean Crosby 
Paul Arena 
Joe Hoffman 
Dorothy Redd 
Jaime Salgado 
 
 
 

Dave Rickert, Chief Financial Officer 
Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairperson’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives 
Lafakeria Vaughn, State’s Attorney’s Office 
Angie Goral, County Board Member 
Jim Webster, County Board Member 
Ann Johns, Purchasing Director 
Molly Terrinoni, Finance Director 
Brad Lindmark, County Board Member 
Dan Magers, IT Department 
Mark Lofgren, River Bluff Nursing Home 
 

AGENDA:        
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of June 16, 2022 Minutes    
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 

Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to 
three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  
Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning 
Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may 
not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per 
calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic 
in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the 
chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.  

E. Resolution Establishing the Date, Time and Location of Each Meeting of the Winnebago 
County Board 

F. Resolution Awarding Electricity Services 
G. Ordinance Amending Sections 2-65 (Limitation of Debate), 2-72 (Awards, Proclamations and 

Presentations) and 2-81 (Presiding Officer) of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 
H. Future Agenda Items   
I. Adjournment 
 

Chairperson McDonald called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

Roll Call:  Mr. Butitta yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Arena yes, Joe Hoffman yes, Dorothy Redd yes, 
Jaime Salgado yes. Chairperson Keith McDonald yes. 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of June 16, 2022 
Moved:  Mr. Hoffman, Seconded: Mr. Salgado  
Chairperson McDonald called for questions.  There being none the motion was called for approval. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairperson McDonald omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to no one 
present to speak.  
 
Resolution Establishing the Date, Time and Location of Each Meeting of the Winnebago 
County Board 
Motion by Chairperson McDonald and Seconded by Ms. Redd. 

• A discussion followed. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.     
 
Resolution Awarding Electricity Services 
Motion by Chairperson McDonald and Seconded by Mr. Salgado. 

• A discussion followed.  The committee discussed the rates and term of the contract. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.     
 
Ordinance Amending Sections 2-65 (Limitation of Debate), 2-72 (Awards, Proclamations and 
Presentations) and 2-81 (Presiding Officer) of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 
Motion by Chairperson. McDonald and Seconded by Mr. Salgado. 

• A discussion followed.  
Ms. Crosby moved to hold separate votes for the Ordinance Amending Sections of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances with Section 2-65 (Limitation of Debate) and Section 2-72 (Awards, 
Proclamations and Presentations) as a separate vote and a separate vote for Section 2-81 (Presiding 
Officer). 
Seconded by: Mr. Butitta.   
Chairperson McDonald called for questions on Section 2-65 and Section 2-72. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote to approve Section 2-65 and Section 2-72 with the exception 
of one vote. 
 
Chairperson McDonald called for questions on Section 2-81. 
Chairperson McDonald called for a vote.   
Motion passed by the majority voice vote with the exception of one vote to approve Section 2-81.   
Ordinance passed.    

  
Future Agenda Items    
Mr. Lindmark shared information on a Broadband Internet company to provide broadband service 
partnering with surrounding counties to our underserved counties.  SINDIO Networks is working 
with eight other counties in the area and approached Winnebago County about the project.  SINDIO 
has a project plan to apply for federal grants for broadband expansion and asked for geographical 
information that was provided to them through WINGIS.   



 

 

 Page 3  
  

 
Motion to Adjourn.  Moved: Ms. Crosby, Seconded: Mr. Hoffman.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   

  
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant  



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Facilities Maintenance | 400 W. Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4670 |  Email: wincofacilities@fm.wincoil.gov      

   

 
Prepared By:   Facilities Maintenance 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    December 15, 2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  December 22, 2022 
 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?          Yes                                           Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:     Multiple by location                Budget Impact:   None/Budgeted  

 
Background Information:  
Annually the County is required to hire a contractor to perform fire testing services for each of 
the numerous County-owned buildings.   
 
In early November, the Purchasing Department issued an Initiation for Bid (IFB), solicitation 
number 22B-2256. The bid opportunity was sent to numerous contractors, posted on the 
Purchasing Department website, and advertised in the local newspaper, Rockford Register Star.  
A total of four vendors submitted their bids, see Resolution Exhibit A - Bid Tab for the final bid 
results.  The award will be for two years with three, one-year renewal options.   
 
Recommendation:  
Shawn Franks recommends awarding bid 22B-2256 to the lowest responsible bidder, Nelbud 
Services, LLC. 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
The annual agreement will be in the form of a County issued Purchase Order.   
 
Follow-Up:  
Facilities staff will work with the successful contractor to perform the annual fire alarm testing 
services in each County owned building.  
 
         



County Board Meeting:  December 22, 2022 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section; and, 
 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received for solicitation # 22B-2256 on December 6, 
2022 for the following; 

 

ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned services and 
recommends awarding a contract to the most responsive and responsible Bidder with the low 
rate, as follows:  

 

NELBUD SERVICES, LLC. 
3331 WEST ELM STREET 

MCHENRY, ILLINOIS 60050 
 

 

See Bid Tab for Pricing details (RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A) 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the 
funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

 

VARIOUS ACCOUNTS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County Director of Purchasing issue an award notice for a two (2) year contract 
term with three (3) one-year optional renewal terms to NELBUD SERVICES, LLC., 3331 WEST ELM 
STREET, MCHENRY, ILLINOIS 60050. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer,  Director of Purchasing, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



              Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS ANS ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

JOHN  BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov 

 

                                                                                                                     RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 

BID TAB 
ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 22B-2256 

BID OPENING 12/6/2022- 11:00 A.M. 
 
 

 

VENDORS 
 

NELBUD 
SERVICES, LLC. 

PROCOM SYSTEMS, 
INC. 

AFFILIATED 
CUSTOMER 

SERVICE, INC. 

PER MAR SECURITY 
SERVICES 

PRICE FOR ALL LOCATION 
INSPECTIONS $37,765.00 $71,500.00 $39,864.00 $39,256.00 

HOURLY RATE FOR 
REQUESTED EXTRA 

SERVICES 
$115.00 $122.00 $177.00 $120.00 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                 

 

    

http://www.wincoil./
mailto:purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.


County Board Meeting:  December 22, 2022 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING EMERGENCY AGREEMENT WITH TERRACON 

  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the competitive 
bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in accordance with this 
section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-357(d) (Professional Services), 
2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or 
as provided by State statute; and, 

WHEREAS, in Section 2-332(f) of the Purchasing Ordinance, allowance is made for emergency 
purchases defined as Procurement obtained in circumstances which include threats to public health or 
safety, where immediate repairs to County property are required to protect or prevent against further 
loss or damage, or where immediate action is needed to prevent or minimize serious disruption to 
County services; and, 

WHEREAS, an emergency situation occurred in the old County Courthouse at 403 Elm Street and 
the Courthouse at 400 West State Street when a fire started in the old Courthouse basement on the 
evening of November 5, which caused extensive damage and requires Emergency Fire Mitigation Services; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed Resolution Exhibit A - Terracon Agreement and Resolution 
Exhibit B - Emergency Purchase Justification Form received for the aforementioned project and 
agrees with the emergency awarding of an agreement; and,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

that the County has issued, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, a services agreement with TERRACON, 
192 EXCHANGE BOULEVARD, GLENDALE HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 60139.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Financial Officer, County Administrator, Facilities 
Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.                 

 



 
                                                                        Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A















RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  
4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.WinnebagoAnimals.org  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: wcas@wincoil.us 
     

 
Prepared By:   Animal Services Department 
Committee:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   December 15, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of  

Ordinances Regarding Registration Fees for Dogs and Cats    
 

County Code:   Sec. 14-116 – Fee Schedule        
Board Meeting Date: December 22, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                           Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:   N/A 

 
Background Information:    
The Winnebago County Ordinance (as well as State law) requires that all cats and dogs kept within the 
County must be inoculated against rabies and registered.  State law requires that there be different 
registration fees for dogs and cats who are fertile and those who have been spayed or neutered.  
Registration fees have not been adjusted since 2008.  Since that time, annual registration fees have been: 
 

Dog fertile:  $40 
Dog altered:    $25 
Cat fertile: $30 
Cat altered: $20 

 
Recommendation: To amend ordinance to increase fees by $5 for altered dogs and cats and $10 for fertile 
dogs and cats. Amended fees as follows: 
 

Dog fertile:  $50 
Dog altered:  $30 
Cat fertile:  $40 
Cat altered:  $25 

 
Legal Review:  SAO prepared draft amendment to Sec. 14-116 – Fee Schedule. 
 
Follow-Up:   Winnebago County Animal Services will communicate the revised dog and cat registration 
fees when the 2023 registration tags are distributed. 

http://www.winnebagoanimals.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


                 County Board Meeting 
          December 22, 2022 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2022 CO _____ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING REGISTRATION 
FEES FOR DOGS AND CATS 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances is entitled 
“Animal Control Ordinance of Winnebago County”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Animal Control Ordinance of Winnebago County sets 
forth fees and charges for services rendered and registration of dogs and cats; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Animal Control Act, 510 ILCS 5/1 et seq., enables the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois to charge residents fees for registration of dogs and cats, provided that the 
registration fee of altered animals is at least ten dollars ($10.00) less than the registration fee of 
unaltered animals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Animal Control Act promotes the general public health and 
welfare in that it provides a structure to minimize the possibility of rabies transmission, including 
a requirement that county animal registration be accompanied by proof that said animal is 
inoculated against rabies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago charges county residents registration fees to help 
provide funding for the implementation of a well-functioning Animal Services division; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago recognizes that costs of maintaining a responsible 
and well-functioning Animal Services division have increased since the last registration fee 
increase in 2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending that the following registration fee 
changes be enacted. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code 
of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 



Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release of the 
animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the dog is 
under one year of age, annually .....$ 30.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....50.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually 

.....25.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(2)  Cat registration: ..... 
a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the cat is 

under one year of age, annually .....25.00 
b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....40.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually 

.....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-approved 
identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and receive 
preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 



d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 
2. Per adult cat .....20.00 

b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three months of 
age .....5.00 

c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, cat or 

other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at owner's 

home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian performing 
the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of the animal indicating 
that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income county residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social 
Security Disability Benefits Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee reduction 
at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this 
code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 of the Illinois Animal 
Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter amended, including maintaining a 
minimum differential often $10.00 between altered and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that 
differential to be deposited county animal population control fund or in the state's pet 
population control fund and b) that any such reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet 
owners to become in compliance with sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in subsection 
(7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and handling charge fees 
set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the number of animals being held 
at the county shelter. The animal services administrator shall provide a report to the county 
administrator each month which sets forth the fees that have been modified, or waived in each 
subsection above, including the total values of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Administrator and 
Administrator of the Winnebago County Animal Services Department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



             Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS ANS ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

JOHN  BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



1 

County Board Meeting 
December 22, 2022 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2022 CO ____ 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN GUEVARA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, DIVISION  4 OF THE 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE RELATING TO THE RULES OF 

PROCEDURE OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their Rules of Procedure, as currently contained in Division 4 of Chapter 2, Article 
II, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 7(c) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, (5 ILCS 
120/7(c)) (the “Act”), “A majority of the public body may allow a member to attend a 
meeting by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted 
by the public body”; and   

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board has determined that it is appropriate to 
adopt procedures to allow members of the public body to attend meetings of the public 
body by other means (video or audio conference), and satisfy the requirements of the Act 
and as further provided herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-91 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Section 2-91. Attendance by Other Means (Video or Audio Conference) 

(a) In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. seq.), a County
Board member may attend regular or special meetings for all public bodies of the County
Board by other means (video or audio conference) if the member is prevented from
physically attending because of:

(1) personal illness or disability;

(2) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or

(3) a family or other emergency.



2 
 

(b) A member wishing to attend a regular or special meeting by other means must notify 
the Clerk of the County Board and County Board Office at least seven (7) days before the 
meeting, unless advance notice is impractical.  

(c) After a roll call vote establishing that a quorum is physically present, any member 
physically present may make a motion to permit another member to participate by other 
means. Such motion shall include the reason for the absence. 

(d) All members physically present are permitted to vote on whether such participation 
will be allowed and the motion must be approved by a vote of a majority of those 
members physically present. 

(e) A member attending by other means shall be considered present at the meeting and 
entitled to discuss and vote on any matter before the public body, as if the member were 
physically present at the meeting. The meeting minutes shall reflect if a member is 
attending by other means. 

(f) A member shall maintain proper decorum as if the member were physically present at 
the meeting and comply with all county board rules and procedures previously adopted 
and adhered to. 

(g) The member attending by other means and all members physically present must be 
able to communicate effectively, and members of the public must be able to hear all 
discussion, testimony and votes.  

(h) No more than two (2) members may attend a meeting by other means without being 
physically present at the meeting location.  

(i) Attendance by other means by any member is prohibited for closed sessions. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Board Chairman and the 
Chairmen of the Republican and Democratic caucuses and shall direct that the Department 
of Information Technology take appropriate action to revise the Code of Ordinances on the 
County Website so as to be consistent with the terms of this Ordinance. 

 
 

   Respectfully submitted, 
 

                                            OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
  
 



3 
 

AGREE       DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
John Butitta             John Butitta 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Michael Thompson            Michael Thompson 
 
_________________________________           ________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd         Valerie Hanserd 
 
__________________________________        __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
   
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2022.  
  
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph V. Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



Section 2-91. Attendance by Other Means (Video or Audio Conference)  

(a) In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. seq.), a County 
Board member may attend regular or special meetings for all public bodies of the County 
Board by other means (video or audio conference) if the member is prevented from 
physically attending because of: 

  (1) personal illness or disability; 

  (2) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or 

(3) a family or other emergency.  

(b) A member wishing to attend a regular or special meeting by other means must notify the 
Clerk of the County Board and County Board Office at least seven (7) days before the 
meeting, unless advance notice is impractical.  

(c) After a roll call vote establishing that a quorum is physically present, any member 
physically present may make a motion to permit another member to participate by other 
means. Such motion shall include the reason for the absence. 

(d) All members physically present are permitted to vote on whether such participation will 
be allowed and the motion must be approved by a vote of a majority of those members 
physically present. 

(e) A member attending by other means shall be considered present at the meeting and 
entitled to discuss and vote on any matter before the public body, as if the member were 
physically present at the meeting. The meeting minutes shall reflect if a member is 
attending by other means. 

(f) A member shall maintain proper decorum as if the member were physically present at 
the meeting and comply with all county board rules and procedures previously adopted and 
adhered to. 

(g) The member attending by other means and all members physically present must be able 
to communicate effectively, and members of the public must be able to hear all discussion, 
testimony and votes.  

(h) No more than two (2) members may attend a meeting by other means without being 
physically present at the meeting location.  

(i) Attendance by other means by any member is prohibited for closed sessions.    



Open Meetings Act- 5 ILCS 120/7 

 

(5 ILCS 120/7) 
    Sec. 7. Attendance by a means other than physical presence. 
    (a) If a quorum of the members of the public body is physically present 

as required by Section 2.01, a majority of the public body may allow a member 

of that body to attend the meeting by other means if the member is prevented 

from physically attending because of: (i) personal illness or disability; 

(ii) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or (iii) a 

family or other emergency. "Other means" is by video or audio conference. 

 
    (b) If a member wishes to attend a meeting by other means, the member 

must notify the recording secretary or clerk of the public body before the 

meeting unless advance notice is impractical. 

 
    (c) A majority of the public body may allow a member to attend a meeting 

by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules 

adopted by the public body. The rules must conform to the requirements and 

restrictions of this Section, may further limit the extent to which 

attendance by other means is allowed, and may provide for the giving of 

additional notice to the public or further facilitate public access to 

meetings. 

 
    (d) The limitations of this Section shall not apply to (i) closed 

meetings of (A) public bodies with statewide jurisdiction, (B) Illinois 

library systems with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more 

than 4,500 square miles, (C) municipal transit districts with jurisdiction 

over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles, or (D) local 

workforce innovation areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area 

of more than 4,500 square miles or (ii) open or closed meetings of State 

advisory boards or bodies that do not have authority to make binding 

recommendations or determinations or to take any other substantive action. 

State advisory boards or bodies, public bodies with statewide jurisdiction, 

Illinois library systems with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of 

more than 4,500 square miles, municipal transit districts with jurisdiction 

over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles, and local 

workforce investment areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area 

of more than 4,500 square miles, however, may permit members to attend 

meetings by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by 

specific procedural rules adopted by the body. For the purposes of this 

Section, "local workforce innovation area" means any local workforce 

innovation area or areas designated by the Governor pursuant to the federal 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act or its reauthorizing legislation. 

 
    (e) Subject to the requirements of Section 2.06 but notwithstanding any 

other provision of law, an open or closed meeting subject to this Act may be 

conducted by audio or video conference, without the physical presence of a 

quorum of the members, so long as the following conditions are met: 
        (1) the Governor or the Director of the Illinois 

     

Department of Public Health has issued a disaster declaration related to 

public health concerns because of a disaster as defined in Section 4 of 

the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act, and all or part of the 

jurisdiction of the public body is covered by the disaster area; 
        (2) the head of the public body as defined in 



     
subsection (e) of Section 2 of the Freedom of Information Act determines 

that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted under this Act is not 

practical or prudent because of a disaster; 
        (3) all members of the body participating in the 

     
meeting, wherever their physical location, shall be verified and can hear 

one another and can hear all discussion and testimony; 
        (4) for open meetings, members of the public present 

     

at the regular meeting location of the body can hear all discussion and 

testimony and all votes of the members of the body, unless attendance at 

the regular meeting location is not feasible due to the disaster, 

including the issued disaster declaration, in which case the public body 

must make alternative arrangements and provide notice pursuant to this 

Section of such alternative arrangements in a manner to allow any 

interested member of the public access to contemporaneously hear all 

discussion, testimony, and roll call votes, such as by offering a 

telephone number or a web-based link; 
        (5) at least one member of the body, chief legal 

     
counsel, or chief administrative officer is physically present at the 

regular meeting location, unless unfeasible due to the disaster, 

including the issued disaster declaration; and 
        (6) all votes are conducted by roll call, so each 
     member's vote on each issue can be identified and recorded. 
        (7) Except in the event of a bona fide emergency, 48 

     

hours' notice shall be given of a meeting to be held pursuant to this 

Section. Notice shall be given to all members of the public body, shall 

be posted on the website of the public body, and shall also be provided 

to any news media who has requested notice of meetings pursuant to 

subsection (a) of Section 2.02 of this Act. If the public body declares a 

bona fide emergency: 
            (A) Notice shall be given pursuant to subsection 

         
(a) of Section 2.02 of this Act, and the presiding officer shall 

state the nature of the emergency at the beginning of the meeting. 
            (B) The public body must comply with the verbatim 
         recording requirements set forth in Section 2.06 of this Act. 
        (8) Each member of the body participating in a 

     
meeting by audio or video conference for a meeting held pursuant to this 

Section is considered present at the meeting for purposes of determining 

a quorum and participating in all proceedings. 
        (9) In addition to the requirements for open meetings 

     

under Section 2.06, public bodies holding open meetings under this 

subsection (e) must also keep a verbatim record of all their meetings in 

the form of an audio or video recording. Verbatim records made under this 

paragraph (9) shall be made available to the public under, and are 

otherwise subject to, the provisions of Section 2.06. 
        (10) The public body shall bear all costs associated 
     with compliance with this subsection (e).  
(Source: P.A. 100-477, eff. 9-8-17; 101-640, eff. 6-12-20.) 

 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=84&ChapterID=2  
 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=84&ChapterID=2

	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services
	Resolution Approving Emergency Agreement With Terracon
	Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winn. Cty. Code of Ordinances Regarding Registraton Fees for Dogs and Cats 
	Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4 of Winn. Cty. Code Relating to Rules of Procedure of Cty. Board



